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MEMORANDUM

TO:
Board of Commissioners
FROM:
Planning Board and Planning and Development Staff
DATE:
February 19, 2004
SUBJECT:
Request to amend Hotel District Unified Access Plan to permit new street entrance on Mall Drive.

Seaboard Surveying & Planning, on behalf of their client Seven Sisters South, LLC, has submitted the attached request to amend the Village Hotel District unified access plan for provide for an addition access on the north side of Mall Drive for a new street to serve a proposed 14 lot single-family residential subdivision.  The proposed subdivision would be created from Lot 21, Part A of the Small Hotel Parcel.  While the property is presently classified as Hotel District, wherein single-family dwellings are not a permitted use, Section 22-702, Land Use Regulations, allows the reclassification of higher use districts with lower use districts without having to seek Board of Commissioner approval.  The applicant is proposing to reclassify the property from Hotel District (the highest listed use district) to Detached Single-Family District (the lowest listed use district) to permit the intended single-family home development.  The proposed street would be constructed to the Minor Street standard as prescribed under Section 22-791(e), Transportation Standards, for the Village of Nags Head.  The proposed street would access Mall Drive to the south and run north intersecting with an existing east/west access connecting NC 12 and US 158.  This street type would be consistent with the type and intensity of development being proposed. All of the proposed subdivision lots would be provided access by this street, thereby eliminating the need for individual driveway accesses on NC 12.
The Village at Nags Head Master Plan adopted in 1986 requires development to occur in accordance with a unified development plan. Properties within the Village have a greater lot coverage allowance and generally a greater development potential as a trade off for dedicated open space (golf course), central stormwater drainage system, and decreased signage.  The Master Plan was additionally envisioned with limited access and minimal curb cuts on NC 12 and US 158.  Specifically, in the Hotel District, Section 22·834 (e) 7. reads as follows: 

Vehicle access. Each lot that fronts on Mall Drive shall be entitled to one (1) access (curb cut) onto this street except where the town has approved a unified access plan. When a unified access plan has been approved by the town, access to Mall Drive, US 158 (South Croatan Highway) and NC 12 (South Virginia Dare Trail) shall be in strict adherence with that approved access plan. All accessways shall be at least one hundred (100) feet from an intersection with NC 12 or US 158.

The property in question presently has one approved access that serves as a shared entrance with adjoining Lot 20 upon which is located Maiones Restaurant.  In staff’s opinion, the location of this shared entrance to serve commercial development on Lot 21, Part A would be considered sufficient, but to serve the proposed residential development of the property could be considered problematic.  
Several policies appear in the 2000 Land and Water Use Plan, Chapter 10, Traffic and Transportation, which provide guidance and direction in making decisions regarding steet access.  The goal of the Town of Nags Head is to provide a street and bridge system that allows efficient and safe movement of vehicles to and within the Town which also permits quick evacuation of all residents and visitors when necessary. In the furtherance of achieving this goal, one of the plans stated objectives is for the Town to evaluate all future development proposals for their potential impact on traffic congestion, and to manage development so as to minimize its impacts on the local street system.  The Town also conceptually accepts the Outer Banks Thoroughfare Plan dated 1996 which contains the following in Section VII, page 11, Summary of Recommendations-System Improvements:
System Improvements – Often system improvements can provide additional capacity or improved traffic conditions, with a minimum of capital outlay. Recommended system improvements include:

Protection of access control is one of the two areas where a significant contribution can be made. Specific corridors, such as US 158, NC 12, and Virginia Dare Trail as well as all other major thoroughfares should be protected from unrestricted access.
Staff Recommendation:
The Planning Staff has no objections to the requested amendment to the Hotel District unified access plan. In staff’s opinion granting this proposal would be in accordance with the transportation element of the Town Land and Water Use Plan, the Village Master Plan, as well as the Outer Banks Thoroughfare Plan.  The location of the proposed street entrance onto Mall Drive would meet the minimum 100 feet distance from the intersection of NC 12 and US 158 as required by Zoning Ordinance Section 22-834(e)(7).  It is also staff’s finding that a single internal street serving all of the proposed residential lots would be a preferable means of access as opposed to multiple driveway entrances located on NC 12.  Staff would recommend that an approval of this requested amendment to the Hotel District unified access plan be conditioned upon (1) that by approved and recorded final subdivision plat the property shall be reclassified as “Detached Single-Family Home District”, (2) that the proposed street be constructed to the Minor Street standard set forth under Code Section 22-791(e), and (3) the requirement that all proposed subdivision lots having road frontage on either NC12 or Mall Drive be required to provide driveway access only on the proposed minor street and that driveway entrances onto NC12 or Mall Drive from individual lots be prohibited. 
Staff additionally notes that while Section 22-702 of the Village District allows higher use districts to be reclassified with lower use districts without Board of Commissioner approval, the reclassification of lower use districts to higher use districts does require Board of Commissioner approval.  Therefore, if this property is reclassified to Detached Single-Family District (the lowest identified use district) as proposed in this application, any future change in district classification could only be to a higher district and therefore could only be done if approved by the Board of Commissioner.  While staff finds that the proposed Minor Street would be sufficient for the intended residential development of the property, such road would not be considered adequate for commercial development purposes.
Planning Board Recommendation:

At their meeting on February 17, 2004 the Planning Board by a unanimous vote recommends approval of the request to amend the Hotel District Unified Access Plan with all the conditions as recommended by staff.  At the Planning Board meeting the applicant stated that he did not have any objections to the recommended conditions of approval. 
